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w IN‘?THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
14/ {7\ FORTHE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA
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agree with the plaintiff regarding said designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk
of court and serve on the plaintiff and all other parties, a case management track designation form specifying the track
to which that defendant believes the case should be assigned.
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Ul\;IITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

EDWARD A. MURRAY, indz’via‘Vually and on
behalf of all others similarly situated, ffsg @? £ :E., o 6

1 NO.
Plaintiff,

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

V.

JOHNSON ~ MATTHEY INC. d/b/a
JOHNSON MATTHEY TESTING; and

TRUE SRECEEN, INC.
Dettdans. FILED

SEP 15 201/

KATH B
CLASS COMPLAINT By KM Dop o

COMES NOW the Plaintiff Edward A. Murray (“Plaintiff” or “Mr. Murray”), on behalf
of himself and all similarly situated individuals, by counsel, as for Class Complaint against the

Defendants, he alleges as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

L. Plaintiff brings individual and class claims against TRUE SCREEN, INC. (“True
Screen™) for violation of his rights under the Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA™), 15 U.S.C. §
1681 et seq. for furnishing a misleading and inaccurate criminal background report furnished to a

third party.

2. Plaintiff brings in‘fdividual claims against JOHNSON MATTHEY INC. d/b/a

JOHNSON MATTHEY TESTIN:G (“JMT™) for violation of his rights under the Pennsylvania

Criminal History Record Information Act (“CHRIA™), 18 Pa. Cons. Stat. Ann. § 9125.




Case 2:17-cv-04136-GEKP Document 1 Filed 09/15/17 Page 5 of 22
|

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
1
3. Many employers % require job applicants to complete a background check

successfully prior to extending an/offer of employment.

4. Companies that [provide {)ackground check services collect information

concerning members of the public, such as criminal histories, into reports and offer the reports
for sale. Including for sale to employers when the employers are conducting background checks
on prospective and current employees.

5. Defendant True Sj’creen provides such services. Defendant True Screen offers
background reports for sale to employers, such as to Defendant JMT, including background
reports containing criminal histori;&:s.

6. Because an employer’s hiring decision often depends upon the applicant being

either completely free of criminal convictions, free of certain types of criminal conviction, or

free of criminal convictions within a certain period of time, it is extremely important that the

information contained in criminal history reports is accurate.
7. Unfortunately, for prospective employees whose prospective employers engage

Defendant True Screen’s background reporting services, the reports (a “Criminal Conviction

Report”) are often misleading and inaccurate.
8. Defendant True Screen’s misleading and inaccurate Criminal Conviction Reports
result in adverse employment decisions against qualified employees.

9. Defendant True Screen provided a misleading and inaccurate Criminal Conviction

Report to Defendant JMT in that they willfully reported Mr. Murray’s summary offense
conviction as an “Infraction” conyiction. A “Infraction” disposition classification does not exist

in the Pennsylvania Crimes Code.
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10.  Thus, the Defend‘ant True Screen presented Mr. Murray’s criminal history
information in its Criminal Convic&:tion Report in a manner that misleads and is inaccurate, which
consequently injured Mr. Murray.i

11. As described in deéail below, Defendant has injured Mr. Murray by providing his

|

prospective employer with a m{isleading and inaccurate Criminal Conviction Report. The
inaccurate Criminal Conviction Report resulted in, among other things, Mr. Murray’s offer of
employment being rescinded by Defendant JMT.

12. A report that is anything but blank can severely undermine an individual’s
employment possibilities for his or her entire life and can result in collateral consequences that
expand an individual’s punishmerfilt beyond that originally contemplated by the criminal justice
system.

13.  For that reason, Pénnsylvania law, through the Pennsylvania Criminal History
Record Information Act (“CHRIA”), forbids employers from considering arrests or charges that
did not result in a conviction whe!h making hiring decisions, and provides important substantive
and procedural protections to job applicants to enforce that prohibition.

14.  CHRIA applies to all Pennsylvania employers that decide whether or not to hire
an employment applicant based in whole or in part on the basis of the applicant’s criminal
history record information.

15.  CHRIA allows Pennsylvania employers to consider only felony and misdemeanor
convictions in hiring decisions but such information “may be considered by the employer only to

the extent to which they relate to| the applicant’s suitability for employment in the position for

which he has applied.” 18 Pa. C.S! § 9125(a)-(b).
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|

16.  CHRIA forbids emﬁployers from considering arrests or charges that did not result

in convictions, including withdrawn charges, when making hiring decisions.
\

17.  CHRIA forbids erriployers from considering summary convictions, when making
hiring decisions. |

18. CHRIA requires tﬁat when an employer denies a job application in whole or in
part based on criminal history reicord information, the employer must notify the applicant in
writing of such basis for its ciecision, so that an applicant can identify any inaccurate
information.

19.  Mr. Murray has experienced the damage to his reputation and to his ability to earn
an income that CHRIA was desiéned to prevent. In July 2017, Defendant JMT refused to hire
Mr. Murray based solely or in part on criminal history record information that showed criminal
convictions unrelated to the job fof which he had applied.

20.  Defendant True Screen systematically and willfully violates the Fair Credit
Reporting Act, 15 US.C. § 16{81 et seq. (the “FCRA”), by failing to follow reasonable
procedures to assure maximum poésible accuracy of Mr. Murray’s Criminal Conviction Report.

21. Defendant JMT violated CHRIA, 18 Pa. C.S. § 9125 for Defendant JMT’s
impermissible use of Mr. Murray’s summary and misdemeanor convictions to deny him
employment to which he was qualified and for which he would have otherwise would have been
hired. |

22.  Thus, Ms. Murray brings the instant claims, seeking injunctive relief, actual

damages, exemplary and punitive damages, and costs and fees.
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PARTIES

23. Mr. Murray Murre‘ly is a sixty-year-old African-American man who resides in

Philadelphia, Philadelphia County}; Pennsylvania and is a “consumer” as protected and governed
by the FCRA, at 15 U.S.C. § 1681a.
24.  Defendant JMT is a Pennsylvania corporation operating in the Philadelphia area

with a principal place of business located at 435 Devon Park Drive, Wayne, PA19087. At all

times relevant hereto, it was a “user” of the consumer report of Plaintiff, as governed by the

FCRA.

25.  Defendant True Screen is a business entity that provides background screening
services, decision-making intelligence, public record reports and operates as a consumer
reporting agency. Defendant True Screen regularly conducts business in the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania, and operates a priincipal place of business at 251 Veterans Way Warminster,
Bucks, PA18974. |

26. At all times relevant hereto third party Defendant True Screen operated as
“consumer reporting agencies” as beﬁned and governed by the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. §1681a(f).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

27.  This Court has ofiginal subject matter jurisdiction over Mr. Murray’s FCRA
claim pursuant to under 15 U.S.C./§ 1681p, 28 U.S.C. § 1331, and supplemental jurisdiction over

his CHRIA claim pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1367.

28.  Mr. Murray’s CHRIA claim is so closely related to the FCRA claim that it forms

part of the same case or controversy under Article III of the United States Constitution.

29.  Venue lies properly‘ in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2).
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30.  This Court has p%:rsonal jurisdiction over the matter because the Defendants

conduct substantial business activity in this District and because many of the unlawful acts

described herein occurred in this i‘District and give rise to the claims alleged, including but not

limited to: Mr. Murray’s claims arise directly out of Defendant True Screen’s conduct within the
\

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, ‘including Defendant True Screen’s misleading and inaccurate
criminal back report to Mr. Murray’s potential employer Defendant JMT.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
\

\
31. Mr. Murray has been arrested and charged with crimes on three occasions. First,

|
in May 1982, Mr. Murray was charged with two misdemeanors. The charges were withdrawn
and did not result in any conviction.
32. Second, in March 2009, Mr. Murray was charged with two misdemeanors. On

May 2009, the charges were withdrawn and instead Mr. Murray pleaded guilty to two summary

offenses. 1

\
33.  Third, in 2014, Mr. Murray was charged with and found guilty of one
misdemeanor for driving under thé influence.

Mr. Murray’s Application for Employment with Defendant JMT

34.  In or around April 28, 2017, Mr. Murray applied for an open position with

Defendant JMT as a maintenanf:e electrician by completing a Defendant JMT employment
application online.
35.  As a maintenance électrician, Mr. Murray would not have to operate a vehicle or
any other machinery.
36.  Mr. Murray was qualified for the position based on his work history. Mr Murray

has worked for over twenty (20) years in the mechanical and electrical trades as an Electro-
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Mechanical Technician, Operat{ing Engineer, Independent Business Owner, Journeyman

Maintenance Mechanic, and Rail Vehicle Electronics Specialist working for industry leading

i
organizations including but not limited to:

a.

b.

12/2016 to Present - Indusfrial Maintenance Mechanic, Pandrol USA, Bridgeport, NJ;
11/2015 to 03/2016 - ;‘ Maintenance Mechanic, IFF/Ottens Flavors Mfg. Co.,
Philadelphia/Folcroft, PA; |

06/2012 to 04/2014 - Industrial Electrician 1V/Facilities Specialist, URS Corporation,
Collegeville, PA,

06/2011 to 12/2011 - Field Service Technician, Top Tempo Technical, Philadelphia, PA;
02/2010 to 07/2011 - | Electro-Mechanical Technician, Pepperidge Farm Inc.,
Downingtown, PA;

05/2008 to 12/2008 - Operating Engineer/Critical Data Center, Jones Lang LaSalle,

Wilmington, DE; ‘

08/2003 to 05/2010 - Owner, Murray Electrical, Philadelphia, PA a Philadelphia based

|

maintenance and repair company focusing on electrical, carpentry, plumbing, heating and
|

appliance repair;

07/2003 to 09/2003 - Journeyman Maintenance Mechanic, United Parcel Service,

Philadelphia, PA;

09/2001 to 07/2003 - Rail Vehicle Electronics Specialist, S.E.P.T.A., Philadelphia, PA

03/1996 to 03/2001 - Electro-Mechanical-Technician/Electrician, Interstate Brands, Inc.,

Hostess;

05/1986 to 02/1996 - Sands Hotel and Casino, Electronics Slot Technician;
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1. 01/1979 to 03/1986 - [}Inited States Postal Service, Mail Processing Equipment
|

Mechanic; and

m. 1974 to 1978 - Aircraft Crash/Fire Rescueman, United States Marine Corps (Honorable

Discharge).

37. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Murray visited Defendant JMT’s location to attend an

r
\
interview regarding employment. ‘

38.  After the aforesaid interview, on or about May 17, 2017 Defendant JMT made an
offer of employment to Mr. Murray contingent upon a drug screen and background check results.

39. In connection wi@ Mr. Murray’s application, Defendant JMT purchased a
background screening report from Defendant True Screen. Hence, the report was obtained and
used for an employment purpose.

40. Thereafter, using its usual practices and procedures, Defendant True Screen
compiled and furnished a consumer background report regarding Mr. Murray to Defendant JMT.
On or about June 15, 2017, IMT ‘sent Mr. Murray a pre-adverse action notice letter stating that
the background check report recei,lved from Defendant True Screen may affect his application for
employment with Defendant JM"IL. Attached to the letter was a Consumer report prepared by
Defendant True Screen which incl;uded a Criminal Conviction Report.

41.  Mr. Murray, upon review of the Criminal Conviction portion of the Consumer
Report, noted that it inaccurately reported the disposition of his 2009 arrest.

42.  Review of the Criminal Conviction Report complied and furnished by Defendant
True Screen reveals that True Screen reported Mr. Murray’s summary offense as an “Infraction.”

43.  An “Infraction” disposition classification does not exist in the Pennsylvania

Crimes Code.
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44.  On or about June 139, 2017, Mr. Murray disputed the inaccurate criminal reporting
with Defendant True Screen. ‘

45.  On or about June‘20, 2017, Defendant True Screen replied to the dispute by
stating that the dispute was being i)rocessed by Defendant True Screen.

46. On or about July 3, 2017, Defendant True Screen stated that they verified the
inaccurate reporting of the 2009 summary offenses as “Infractions” in response to Mr. Murray’s

dispute.

47.  On or about July 6, 2017, Defendant JMT sent to Mr. Murray an adverse action
letter rescinding its prior offer of employment to him based on the background check report
received from Defendant True Screen.

48.  On or about July %, 2017, Mr. Murray again disputed the inaccurate criminal
reporting with Defendant True Sqeen. In doing so, Mr. Murray included docket entries from the
Montgomery County District Co | and the contact information for the clerk of said court to
verify the information provided including but not limited to withdrawal of the misdemeanor
charges by the county prosecutor.

49, On or about July 7,/2017, Defendant JMT sent to Mr. Murray an email and a letter
confirming Defendant JMT’s rescission of its prior offer of employment to him based on the
background check report received ‘from Defendant True Screen.

50.  On or about July I'l, 2017, Defendant True Screen again verified the inaccurate
reporting of the 2009 misdemeanor offenses in response to Mr. Murray’s dispute.

51.  The Criminal Conyiction Report that Defendant True Screen complied and

furnished to Defendant JMT incltided a misdemeanor offense and two “Infractions.”
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i
\
|
|

52.  Defendant JMT denied Mr. Murray’s application for employment based at least

partially upon the inaccurately rep‘;orted summary convictions.

The Pennsylvania Criminal Histbrv Record Information Act
I

53. CHRIA applies to !étll Pennsylvania employers that decide whether or not to hire
an employment applicant based ‘in whole or in part on the basis of the applicant’s criminal
history record information.

54.  CHRIA allows Pennsylvania employers to consider felony and misdemeanor
convictions in hiring decisions bu'é such information “may be considered by the employer only to
the extent to which they relate toj the applicant’s suitability for employment in the position for
which he has applied.” 18 Pa. C.S. § 9125(b).

55. CHRIA requires that when an employer denies a job application in whole or in
part based on criminal history reicord information, the employer must notify the applicant in
writing of such basis for its d\ecision, so that an applicant can identify any inaccurate

information.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

56.  Plaintiff brings this action individually and as a class action for Defendant’s
violation of the FCRA. Plaintiff] brings this action, pursuant to Rules 23(a) and 23(b) of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of the following Class:

All natural persons residing in the United States who, within two (2) years prior to the
filing of the Complaint @d continuing through the resolution of this case, were the
subjects of background reports prepared by Defendant True Screen which disclosed a
Pennsylvania summary off?nse as an “Infraction.”

|

57.  The Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable. Although
the precise number of Class members is known only to Defendant True Screen, Plaintiff avers

upon information and belief that the Class numbers in the hundreds or thousands. Defendant

10
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True Screen sells criminal history record information to thousands of businesses throughout
the country, and their reports to s&ch businesses are standardized, form documents, produced by
the same practices and proceduires applicable to all subjects of the reports. Moreover,
thousands of people have been cparged and/or convicted of summary offenses in Pennsylvania
during the Class period. |

58.  There are questions of law and fact common to the Class that predominate over
any questions affecting only individual Class members. The principal questions include whether
Defendant, by employing a policy and practice of misidentifying summary offenses as
Infractions, misdemeanors, or more serious offenses, violated section 1681e(b) by failing to
follow reasonable procedures tJ) assure maximum possible accuracy of the information
concerning the individual about whom the report relates.

59.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class, which all arise from the
same operative facts and are based on the same legal theories.

60.  Plaintiff will fairly: and adequately protect the interests of the Class. Plaintiff is
committed to vigorously litigating this matter. Plaintiff has secured counsel experienced in
handling consumer class actions. Neither Plaintiff nor her counsel has any interests which might
cause them not to vigorously pursue this claim.

61.  This action should| be maintained as a class action because the prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the Class would create a risk of inconsistent or
varying adjudications with respedt to individual members which would establish incompatible

standards of conduct for the parties opposing the Class, as well as a risk of adjudications with

respect to individual members which would as a practical matter be dispositive of the interests of

11
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other members not parties to the adjudications or substantially impair or impede their ability to

|
protect their interests. ‘

62. A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
controversy. The interest of Clj'ass members in individually controlling the prosecution of
separate claims against Defendant‘g is small. Management of the Class claims is likely to present
significantly fewer difficulties tha%n those presented in many individual claims. The identities of

the Class members may be obtained from Defendant’s records.

CAUSES OF ACTION

| COUNT I
| Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1681e(b)
(CLASS CLAIM v. Defendant True Screen)

63.  Plaintiff reiterates éach of the allegations in the preceding paragraphs as if set
forth at length herein.

64. Defendant True Screen has admitted the FCRA applies to the Criminal
Conviction Report it issued to ]%’laintiff because the report included, inter alia, a copy of

Plaintiff’s rights under the FCRA. |
|

\
65.  Defendant True Screen’s Criminal Conviction Reports are “consumer reports”

under the FCRA because each Criminal Conviction Report is a “written ... communication of ...

information by a consumer reporting agency bearing on a consumer’s ... character, general
I

reputation, personal characterlstlc§, or mode of living which is used or expected to be used or

|

collected in whole or in part for the purpose of serving as a factor in establishing the consumer’s

eligibility for ... employment purp‘;oses[.]” Id. § 1681a(d)(1)(B).
|

66.  As part of its service agreement with its customers, Defendant True Screen

requires that its subscribers contact Defendant True Screen to invoke special procedures for

12
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preparation and use of a Crimin?l Conviction Report in the case of suspected misconduct or

violation of state, federal, or localilaw.

“
67. Mr. Murray’s Criminal Conviction Report was not procured using these special
procedures.
68.  Mr. Murray’s repdrt was not procured in connection with any investigation of

suspected misconduct relating to employment or to compliance with federal, State, or local laws
and regulations, the rules of a self—regulatory organization, or any preexisting written policies of
the employer.

69. Under FCRA § 1681e(b), Defendant True Screen has a duty to “follow reasonable
procedures to assure maximum possible accuracy of the information” in the Criminal Conviction

|
Reports. Id. § 1681e(b). |

70.  Defendant True Sc:teen’s failure to the Plaintiff and other members of the putative
class to follow reasonable procedures to assure maximum possible accuracy of the information in
the Criminal Conviction Reports violated 15 U.S.C. § 1681e(b) by it knowingly, recklessly, or

|

negligently reports summary convictions as “Infractions” in the Criminal Conviction Report.

71.  Consumer reports e’ire inaccurate for purposes of Section 1681e(b) not only when
they are facially false, but also when they are technically accurate yet nonetheless misleading.

72. The conduct, actior}, and inaction of Defendant True Screen was willful, rendering
each liable for statutory and punitive damages in an amount to be determined by the Court
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1681n.

73.  Plaintiff and other members of the putative class are entitled to recover costs and

attorney’s fees as well as appropriate equitable relief from Defendant True Screen in an amount

to be determined by the Court puréuant to 15 U.S.C. §1681n.
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|

74. As a result of these FCRA violations, Defendant is liable to Plaintiff and to each
Class Member, for statutory damages from $100.00 to $1,000.00 pursuant to 15 U.S.C.

§1681n(a)(1)(A), plus punitive damages pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1681n(a)(2), and for attorney’s

fees and costs pursuant to §1681n.
| COUNTII
Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1681e(b) and 1681i
(INDIWDUM CLAIM v. Defendant True Screen)
75.  Plaintiff reiterates !each of the allegations in the preceding paragraphs as if fully
1
set forth at herein. |
76.  Defendant True Screen has admitted the FCRA applies to the Criminal
Conviction Report it issued to Plaintiff because the report included, inter alia, a copy of

Plaintiff’s rights under the FCRA..

77.  Defendant True Sc%reen’s Criminal Conviction Reports are “consumer reports”

under the FCRA because each Cri}‘mmal Conviction Report is a “written ... communication of ...

information by a consumer reporting agency bearing on a consumer’s ... character, general
reputation, personal characteristics, or mode of living which is used or expected to be used or
collected in whole or in part for the purpose of serving as a factor in establishing the consumer’s

eligibility for ... employment purposes[.]” Id. § 1681a(d)(1)(B).

78. As part of its ser,ﬂzice agreement with its customers, Defendant True Screen
requires that its subscribers contiact Defendant True Screen to invoke special procedures for
preparation and use of a Criminal Conviction Report in the case of suspected misconduct or
violation of state, federal, or local law.

79.  Mr. Murray’s Criminal Conviction Report was not procured using these special

procedures.
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80.  Mr. Murray’s report was not procured in connection with any investigation of

suspected misconduct relating to %mployment or to compliance with federal, State, or local laws
|

|
and regulations, the rules of a self-regulatory organization, or any preexisting written policies of

the employer. i

81. Under FCRA § 1681e(b), Defendant True Screen has a duty to “follow reasonable
procedures to assure maximum possible accuracy of the information” in the Criminal Conviction
Reports. Id. § 1681e(b). ‘

82. Consumer reports are inaccurate for purposes of § 1681e(b) not only when they are
facially false, but also when they ére technically accurate yet nonetheless misleading.

83. Under FCRA § 1681i(5)(A), Defendant True Screen has a duty to provide after
reinvestigation of information disputed by a consumer that is found to be inaccurate or
incomplete or cannot be Veriﬁed to promptly delete or modify that item of information, as
appropriate, based on the reinvestigation results and then promptly notify the furnisher of same.

84. As set forth above, Defendant True Screen has lacked, and continues to lack,
reasonable procedures to assure the maximum possible accuracy of the information concerning
the information about whom the feports relate because it knowingly, recklessly, or negligently
reports summary convictions as “Ixilfractions” in Mr. Murray’s Criminal Conviction Report.

85.  Defendant True Sc(feen’s violation of § 1681e(b) and § 1681i was willful in that
(i) it knew, or reasonably shouldi‘ have known, that it was failing to comply with the FCRA
and/or (ii) it was acting in reckless disregard of its responsibilities under the FCRA.

86.  In the alternative, Defendant True Screen’s violation of § 1681e(b) and § 1681i

was negligent in that it had an affirmative statutory duty to employ reasonable procedures to
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ensure maximum possible accuracy of the information in the consumer reports in question, but
|
failed to comply with that statutorﬂi duty.
i
87.  If Defendant True iScreen willfully violated § 1681e(b) and § 1681i, Plaintiff is

entitled to any actual damages the% sustained or damages of not less than $100 and not more than
$1,000; such amount of punitive ‘damages as the court may allow; and the costs of the action
together with reasonable attorney’s fees as determined by the court, as specified in Section
1681n(a)(1)(A), (2), and (3).

88. In the alternative, 1f Defendant True Screen negligently violated § 1681e(b) and
16811, Plaintiff is entitled to any éctual damages he sustained, along with the costs of the action
together with reasonable attornéy’s fees as determined by the court, as specified in §
16810(a)(1), (2).

COUNT II1

Yiolation of 18 Pa. C.S. § 9125(a-b))
(INDIVIDUAL CLAIM v. Defendant JMT)

89.  Plaintiff reiterates ieach of the allegations in the preceding paragraphs as if fully
set forth herein.

90. Mr. Murray applied for employment with Defendant JMT.

91. Mr. Murray was qugliﬁed for the position.

92.  Defendant JMT willfully decided not to hire Mr. Murray based on information
that was part of his criminal history record information file provided by Defendant True Screen.

93. CHRIA allows employers to consider felony and misdemeanor convictions in
hiring decisions but such information “may be considered by the employer only to the extent to

which they relate to the applicant]s suitability for employment in the position for which he has

applied.” 18 Pa. C.S. § 9125(a).
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94.  Mr. Murray was never convicted of a misdemeanor or felony offense in 2009 and
therefore cannot, in whole or in pﬁrt, legally form the basis for an employer’s decision not to hire
him. |

95. Mr. Murray’s misc:lemeanor convictions for driving under the influence did not

relate to his suitability for employment in the mechanical engineer position at JMT for which he
i

applied. :

96. Withdrawn charges against Mr. Murray were not convictions and cannot, in

whole or in part, legally form the basis for an employer’s decision not to hire him.

97. Summary convictions cannot legally form the basis for an employer’s decision

not to hire him. 3

98. The actions of Defendant JMT injured Mr. Murray, including by causing
significant damages in lost wages and benefits and harm to his reputation.

99.  Accordingly, Defendant JMT willfully violated 18 Pa. C.S. § 9125(a)-(b).

100. Mr. Murray is enti‘;ﬁtled to injunctive relief, any actual and real damages not less

\
than $100 for each of these Violati;ons, exemplary and punitive damages not less than $1,000 and

not more than $10,000 for each o‘f these violations, reasonable costs of litigation and attorneys’

|
fees, as specified in 18 Pa. C.S. § 9183.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38(b), Plaintiff demands trial by jury on all

issues so triable in this action.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully pray that relief be granted as follows:
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a. That judgment be ‘entered against Defendant True Screen for statutory damages
in the amount of not less than §100 and not more than $1,000 per violation, pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1681n(a);

b. That judgment be entered against Defendant True Screen for actual damages,
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681n and 16810;

c. That judgment be entered against Defendant True Screen for punitive damages
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(é);

d. Award costs and feasonable attorney's fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n and
16810;

e. Award injunctive relief, pursuant to 18 Pa. C.S. § 9183(a), compelling Defendant
JMT to discontinue their practices of violating 18 Pa. C.S. § 9125 in their hiring processes and
providing a system to monitor compliance;

f. Award Plaintiff actual and real damages not less than. $100 for each of these
violations, pursuant to 18 Pa. C.S.;§ 9183(b)(2);

g. Award Plaintiff exemplary and punitive damages not less than $1,000 and not
more than $10,000 for each of these violations, pursuant to 18 Pa. C.S. § 9183(b)(2);

h. Award Plaintiff his reasonable costs of litigation and attorneys’ fees, pursuant to

18 Pa. C.S. § 9183(b)(2); and

i That the Court grant such other and further relief as may be just and proper.

i ,:«'”';A“
Dated: September 15, 2017 / //@Z/‘/

ROEERT P. COCCO, P.C.
By: Robert P. Cocco, Esquire
Attorney ID No. 61907

1500 Walnut Street, Suite 900
Philadelphia, PA 19102
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Telephone: 215-351-0200
rcocco{@ren.com

WILLIG, WILLIAMS & DAVIDSON
Ryan Allen Hancock

Attorney ID No. 92590

1845 Walnut Street, 24th Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Telephone: 215.656.3679
rhancock@wwdlaw.com

| Attorneys for Plaintiff and Proposed Class
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